






History
In the late 1970s the Hong Kong Council of Women (HKCW) (now 

disbanded) conducted a successful campaign to highlight the handling 

of rape victims by the media. This 'War on Rape Campaign' was 

followed by the formation of the Women's Centre sub-committee which 

opened a telephone line on May 5, 1981 to handle public enquiries. 

The telephone service was manned by volunteers in a back room of 

the office occupied by the former Urban Councilor, Ms Elsie Elliot. In 

1985, the Women's Centre acquired its own premises in Lai Kok Estate, 

Sham Shui Po, and in August 1989, it was accepted as a member of The 

Community Chest of Hong Kong. While still affiliated to HKCW, the Centre 

continued to develop and had its own dedicated Executive Committee. 

In September 1992, the Women's Centre was subsequently renamed the 

"Hong Kong Federation of Women's Centres" (HKFWC) in order to chart 

a new direction for itself. In 1996, the HKFWC established its second 

centre in Tai Wo Estate, Tai Po, thereby expanding its services in the New 

Territories. In September 2014, the HKFWC founded its third centre in 

Fanling, laying a concrete cornerstone in serving women in the Northern 

District, and named it "WISE (Women In Self Enhancement)". The HKFWC 

is a member agency of The Hong Kong Council of Social Service, and in 

2002 acquired Special Consultative Status with the Economic and Social 

Council of the United Nations.

Mission
1. To promote the rights and status of women.

2. To help women develop their individual potential.

3. To collaborate and co-ordinate with agencies and groups concerned 

with women's issues.

4. To advise decision-making bodies on the needs of women and the 

resources required to meet these needs effectively.

5. To pioneer the development of resources and services that are in the 

interest of women.

Our Belief
She is independent.

She can develop her abilities.

She can make her own choice.

She needs to have her own time.

She needs to protect herself.

The logo of the Hong Kong Federation of Women's Centres comprises 
of four symbols representing women. These symbols are tightly 
intertwined to represent unity among women despite differences in 
age, social background, religion and race. Collectively, women from 
all strata strive to express women's needs and inspirations and to 
promote women's rights and social status.



Message from the 
Honorary President

Welcome to this Annual Report for Hong Kong 

Federation of Women’s Centres (HKFWC)!

Let me begin by expressing my sincere 

gratitude to all Executive Committee members 

and frontline colleagues across HKFWC for 

their efforts and work in empowering women.  

I  would also l ike to thank al l  members, 

volunteers, donors and organizations in 

partnership for their commitment and support 

to HKFWC over the past year.  

HKFWC continued this year to implement its 

mission of enabling women to develop their 

confidence, independence and competence 

through a series of new and ongoing activities.  

One of the highlighted initiatives was the 

establishment of our third service centre, 

Women In Self Enhancement (WISE) in Fanling.  

The site of WISE is in private space and we 

need to pay for the rent at market price level, 

but we still decide to set it up because we see 

the need of such a centre in the North District.  

Initially WISE is a training centre, in a hope that 

we can pay for the rent, but we will expand to 

other services after we have come across with 

women living in the neighbourhood and learn 

more about their needs.

Besides,  we act ively expanded the ERB 

“Manpower Development Scheme” to help 

more women wi th  job-seek ing,  career 

t ransformat ion and se l f  enhancement . 

The Scheme covered 46 courses in various 

discipl ines, which represented a double 

increase in number when compared to last 

year. To enable them to put into practice what 

had been learned, we helped the graduates 

to set up various self-employment teams. By 

providing products and services, they can 

further develop their capacity for economic 

independence.  

To merit your trust, HKFWC will definitely keep 

up its efforts to help women realize their 

importance in society. Enjoy the reflection of the 

year in the pages ahead!

 

Dr Chan Po-king, Betty
Honorary President 
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Chairperson's 
Remarks



At year end, it is the time to look back as well 

as to look forward amidst the flurry of activities 

and on-going projects. 

We have been overwhelmed by the renovation 

of Lai Kok Centre for nearly six months. After 

more than 15 years’ of operation, we were 

able to re-design the venue to go with the 

wide range of services. We must thank the 

generous support from The Hong Kong Jockey 

Club Charities Trust for their full support of the 

expenses for the renovation and the centre, 

hopefully, will have a new look to better serve 

the community.

With the belief in self reliance, we boldly started 

our first non-public housing service unit WISE 

(meaning Women In Self Enhancement ), at 

North district in 2014. Luckily, we were able to 

stand with the “market” and a self-financing 

women-centred service unit was in shape. With 

increasing demand, a WISE sub-unit is in the 

pipeline to meet the needs of the women living 

in the district.

Women are always torn between family 

caregiving and work. This is particularly true 

in the districts our centres locate. Affordable 

childcare services and quality community 

support services for frail elders in Hong Kong 

are still in great shortage that many women 

have to give up their work and become a full-

time carer for their families. On one hand, 

we have advocated for policies and services 

and facilities on child care and elderly. On the 

other hand, with funding support from Yin 

Shin Leung Foundation and Burberry, we have 

tried out child care support service and after 

school care services respectively to the needy 

families which in fact enabled the women back 

to employment, making them self-reliant. And 

in partnering with the private-public sectors, 

we will support the new arrival women and 

female-headed household women, with 

childcare support and employment.

It is worth highlighted that interesting and 

fashionable job categories makes sel f-

employment a viable option for women. 

The scope and variety of our training and 

employment have been expanding over the 

years. For instance, courses on “Pet Grooming” 

and “Florist & Floral Arrangements” reflected 

the market need nowadays and were found to 

be suitable for women. Furthermore, our past 

experience in co-opts contributes establishing 

self-employment mechanisms. After course 

completion and practicum, they could enter 

the employment market or choose self-

employment. The flexibility in work time and 

choice facilitated greater autonomy for women.

We have always placed great emphasis on 

nurturing the sense of community support 

and to realize this among the residents near 

our centres. We were able to develop the 

community support network in Lai Kok, Tai 

Wo and this year, extended northward with 

the support from Fu Tak Iam Foundation, to 

Wah Ming Estate in building up the women 

mutual support network. Not to mention the 

the funding support from the Community 

Investment And Inclusion Fund to continue to 

support the caregivers who look after their 

elders at home in Tai Po. 

Our concern in the environment remains 

genuine and strong. This was realized in the 

mobilization of women in the neighbourhood 

through sustainable development projects. We 

continued our contribution through workshops 

of making enzyme detergents in corporates, 

food donation from the wet markets and 

bakeries and food sharing to the needy, and 

to further the impact with an Up-cycling Food 

Waste project supported by the Community 

Chest. 

A d v o c a c y  a n d  l o b b y i n g  i s  a  k e y  b u t 

sometimes a blended and hidden part of 

work that in advancing the cause of women's 

empowerment. Embedded in our activities of 

advocacy and lobbying is the urge to voice 

out the felt need and of building a better 

community. Our concern groups carried out 

in-depth discussion into various issues such 

as retirement benefit for homemakers, child 

care services and carer allowance. During 

this process, our staff and members attended 

consultative meetings, spoke in front of the 

LegCo panel on welfare services, and presented 

their situations to the media, consultants and 

professionals etc. Often equally important, 

advocacy work was realized in the day-to-

day work by staff and members in meetings, 

classes, corporates trainings, guided tours etc.

Behind the scene of service and physical 

development, we went back to the basics of the 

organizational structure.  Starting from a hotline 

in 1981, the HKFWC has been expanding its 

service to a wide spectrum. In order to match 

with the current service development, an EGM 

was held and approval was obtained to kick 

start the legal registration process by setting 

up a new company limited by guarantee.  

I am glad to announce that we received the 

registration certificate on 13 November 2015. 

Until the smooth transition of all the necessary 

documents to the new company limited by 

guarantee, the existing HKFWC formed under 

the Societies Ordinance will then be dissolved.

In the light of the emerging organizational 

and service development, we also reviewed 

and s t rengthened the  organ iza t iona l/

working structure by creating supervisory and 

auxiliary posts, enhancing the fundraising and 

communication capability, and encouraging 

collaboration among service teams. In the 

process, we proactively solicited staff input 

to refine the policies so as to forge a family-

friendly working environment. 

Such achievements would not have been 

possible without the dedication of our staff, 

enormous enthusiasm of our volunteers, 

consultants and advisors and the unfailing 

support of our donors and collaborators. We 

offer our sincere thanks to you all and kindly 

ask for your continuing support in our efforts to 

bring a better community as we look forward to 

further success in 2016.

Dr Chan Chui-king, Liliane
Chairperson of Executive Committee
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Director's Report



2014 was a year of excitement for the Hong 

Kong Federation of Women’s Centres. We set 

up our third service centre WISE. We passed 

the Initial Evaluation under the Qualification 

Framework, hence allowing us to run ERB 

courses of up to Level 3. We successfully 

registered a Mutual Help Child Care Centre 

in our Jockey Club Tai Wo Centre after years 

of negotiation with the relevant government 

department. All these will never be possible 

without the dedicated team of staff, the 

devoted governance body and our enthusiastic 

supporters.

We continued packaging our work to address 

feminization of poverty in five dimensions. We 

have organized employment retraining courses 

since the 1990s and have trained nearly 7,000 

women with job skills required by the market 

and also helped them look for jobs. This year, 

we organized more ERB courses than we ever 

had in terms of number and variety, hence 

allowing us to organize graduates into various 

self-employed teams and allowing these 

women to enjoy economic independence in a 

more flexible and an alternative employment 

model.

Apart from the after school care group for 

children from low-income families that we have 

been running at our Jockey Club Lai Kok Centre 

for more than seven years, the Jockey Club 

Tai Wo Centre has started similar programs 

with grants from Yin Shin Leung Charitable 

Foundation and space supported by the Social 

Welfare Department. With their children in our 

good hands, their mothers are now able to 

look for employment or released from care-

giving and enjoy some time of peace of mind.

The advocacy project continued to highlight the 

childcare needs of grassroots women. We met 

with a number of Legislative Council members, 

officials from the Social Welfare Department 

and members of the Commission on Proverty 

to air women’s voices on how the inadequate 

childcare service had negatively affected their 

participation in the labour market and their 

personal development as well as the support 

they need to allow them to have a choice.

Cherish Food: Food Share Project continued as 

we aimed to address two social issues – waste 

management and poverty. This project has 

developed from its trial stage from collecting 

fresh produce from five shop vendors in 

one wet market once a week to the present 

collection from more than 80 vendors from 

two major wet markets in Sham Shui Po five 

days a week. We are proud to save more than  

70,000 kg of food from the landfil ls and 

benefitted more than 29,000 low-income 

families in just one year.

The locality-based carer support project 

continued in Tai Po to build various cross-

sectoral networks to support carers in need 

in Tai Po. After years of groundwork, we were 

able to network more than a hundred hidden 

carers and their families and networked 

them with other carers and resources in the 

community and with professional groups. We 

hope these efforts could demonstrate how 

women, given the traditional gendered division 

of labour, have been adversely affected in 

their participation in the society, in the labour 

market as well as their personal development, 

and what support and policy initiatives are 

necessary to release them from the family, pull 

them out from the poverty trap and enable 

them to choose a life that they’d like to live.

Our core service of hotline and free legal clinic 

also continued to support women in emotional 

distress and with marital problems. Our 

experience continued to show that women who 

have been divorced would become vulnerable 

to poverty as many of their ex-husbands have 

failed to pay the woman and the children the 

alimony. Our concern about the situation of 

divorced women continued with the discussion 

on a law on parental responsibility.

While achievements have been made, we 

constantly face challenges internally and 

externally as a self-financed women’s group 

that delivers our work as guided by our mission 

to the advancement of women and to gender 

equality. I appeal for the continuous support 

and partnership by all of you to make Hong 

Kong a better place for many women and for 

all of us.

Liu Pui-shan, Si-si
Director

2014/15  Annual Report          6  |  7



 

 

Milestones of the year

WISE Grand Opening

To cope with the expansion of our services, in 2014-15 we extended our 

services to the North District with the opening of our third service centre 

Women In Self Enhancement (WISE). WISE is a self-funded entity, and was 

set up to meet the needs of the North District so that more women in 

need can be benefited from our services.

We held a solemn and simple ribbon cutting ceremony for WISE on  

13 December 2014. We were honoured to have in attendance Assistant 

District Social Welfare Officer (Tai Po/North) Judy Shek Chan Lai-wah, 

Hong Kong Council of Social Service Chief Executive Chua Hoi-wai, 

HKFWC Honorary President Dr Betty Chan Bo-king, HKFWC Founding 

President Prof Fanny Cheung Mui-ching, and HKFWC Chairperson 

Dr Liliane Chan Chui-king. Many women came forward during the 

ceremony to share the growth and transformation they had undergone 

in HKFWC, bearing witness to the development of our services. A number 

of other groups from the district also joined us for the joyous festivities of 

the ceremony, lending to the lively atmosphere.



As part of our Manpower Development Scheme, we continued to 

organise employees retraining courses in 2014-15. We offered 46 

courses, more than double the previous year, in a variety of subjects 

designed to promote self-confidence, self-reliance, and autonomy of 

women. The programme had 890 graduates – also doubled from the 

previous year. Through this programme, women are able to choose 

classes per their interests to master new job skills. The programme 

builds on their individual strengths and promotes women's economic 

autonomy.

The HKFWC (Training and Employment Services) were recognised by 

the Hong Kong Council for Accreditation of Academic and Vocational 

Qualifications (HKCAAVQ) as operators meeting the standards at 

Levels 1-3 of the Qualifications Framework, cementing the quality and 

legitimacy of our courses. This means that we will be able to bid for a 

greater number of Employees Retaining Board courses to provide more 

high-quality training for our service targets.

Mutual Help Child Care Centre

We successfully registered our Mutual Help Child Care Centre with the 

Social Welfare Department on 24 October 2014. We aim to further these 

services so families can have affordable childcare options, allowing 

women more opportunities to work.

 

Women Re-employment Scheme Expansion
Recognition of Initial Evalution of Qualification Framework

Self-employment Corps

To further support the economic autonomy of women, since May 2014 

we have assisted graduates of our retraining courses to set up self-

employment corps to provide a variety of services such as such as pet 

grooming and floral arrangements. The corps allow graduates to apply 

the skills they learned while building their self-confidence – and, more 

importantly, it gives them a source of revenue.
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Counselling and 
legal support



                                                                                                       

                                                                                  

                                                                              

                                                                  

                                                   

                                       

                                    

      

    

Women’s Helpline
The Women’s Helpline is Hong Kong’s first hotline solely for the aid of 

women, and has been serving callers for nearly 35 years since it opened 

in May 1981. The Helpline’s trained counsellors, many of whom have 

walked the same path as the Helpline’s callers, offer an array of services 

from emotional support, to responding to inquiries on marriage issues, 

to providing referrals to social services, and other services that the callers 

might need.

Focal Points and Results for 2014-15
The Helpline received a total of 4,431 calls in 2014-15, which includes 

new cases, old cases, proxy cases, and cases from repeat callers. From 

among the 1,427 new cases, 66.3% were from women between the ages 

40-59 (Chart 1), 41.8%of the new cases were regarding mental health 

issues, followed by legal concern (33.3%), martial and cohabitation 

relations (31.5%) and economic issues (26.9%) (Chart 3).

Presently, a total of 66 counsellors provide services to the Helpline 

during the morning, afternoon and evening shifts. All of the counsellors 

have been through rigorous training and practical observation prior to 

providing counselling services through the Helpline.
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My divorce proceedings have been on-going for almost two years. During this time I have lived under stress and 
fear while also dealing with my husband’s unreasonable allegations and demands for proof as I fight for reasonable 
alimony so I can raise my children well. Then I contacted the HKFWC’s Women’s Helpline. 

The Helpline Counsellor helped set up a meeting for me with one of their social workers. The social worker reminded 
that I had been living under high alert, which was putting my emotional state on edge. 

It was like I woke up. The social worker was right. There was no quick fix solution to my issues, so I had to learn to 
be calm. I had to tell myself to stop, then do what I needed to do. 

Just a few days ago, I received custody of my children, though the legal proceedings aren’t yet over. At first I started 
to worry again, but then I thought about it, and told myself to celebrate.

Ms Cheng (pseudonym) 
Women's Helpline Caller

Related Services
Helpline’s Counsellor Training
In 2014-15, 22 enthusiastic and conscientious women received training 

to become Helpline Counsellors across eight sessions beginning 

in September 2014. The training covered topics including the role 

of the counsellor, conduct, self-awareness, telephone counselling 

skills, modern marital issues, community resource referral, marriage 

legislation, domestic violence, mental help, and dealing with suicide. 

Aside from these fundamental counselling skills, the training also 

covered real-life cases that had been revised to maintain anonymity. The 

women trainees shared their thoughts and feelings on the cases to raise 

their empathy and their ability to analyse different types of cases. After 

the training was concluded, each counsellor began a three-month-long 

trial period beginning November 2014 During this time, they mastered 

the skills required to work at the Helpline by listening in on calls and 

responding to trial calls, applying all the things they had learned to 

helping women in need and at times identifying with the callers as 

women who had been in similar situations before.

Helpline Services On-the-Job Training
In 2014-15, a total of 127 volunteers enhanced their counselling skills 

in the seven on-the seven service training workshops for the Women’s 

Helpline. Topics covered included strategies and methods for handling 

sexual harassment cases (two workshops), pitfalls of job searches, legal 

assistance, gender relations, handling incidents of domestic violence 

with the police, and what life is like for transgendered persons.

Helpline Sharing Sessions
Every month, Helpline counsellors from the three shifts – morning, 

afternoon, and evening, arrange a sharing session. During this session 

they discuss what they have learned from their experiences, share any 

issues they encounter on duty, and discuss individual cases. We hope 

that these sharing sessions can help improve our counsellors’ work 

along with their ability to face the diversity of calls for assistance. These 

sharing sessions are also aimed at increasing their self-confidence and 

motivating them to continue to be actively involved in their work. 
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Kim
Legal Advice Clinic Counsellee

Free Legal Advice Clinic
Introduction
The HKFWC formed the Free Legal Advice Clinic in 1992. It is Hong Kong’s 

first legal advice service for women experiencing marital problems. The 

Clinic’s registered lawyers provide free legal counsel on family law issues. 

By providing free and professional legal advice, the Clinic aims to help 

women who may lack the resources to hire a lawyer, or lack a general 

knowledge of the law, so that they can understand their legal rights and 

interests during divorce proceedings, and be empowered legally.

The Clinic’s peer counsellors also offer rudimentary assistance and 

counselling to counsellees. The peer counsellors are a group of 

volunteers who subscribe to the HKFWC’s philosophy and goals. They 

have undergone training to use a women-oriented approach in their peer 

support. By supporting women who seek the Clinic’s services, the peer 

counsellors can increase counsellees’ confidence and ability to handle 

their marital issues, as a number of the peers have also experienced 

marital difficulties.

Focal Points and Results for 2014-15
In 2014-15, 265 women received professional legal advice from the 

Clinic’s 50 volunteer lawyers and assistance from 24 peer counsellors. 

90% of counsellees were aged 30 or above, and the age distribution was 

generally the same across the board (Chart 4), showing that women of 

all ages can be faced with martial and divorce issues. Cases requesting 

assistance in divorce proceedings have continued to be on a rise in recent 

years. According to the Hong Kong Census and Statistics Department, 

the number of divorce cases in Hong Kong have risen from 6,295 in 1991 

to 22,271 in 2013, a roughly four-fold increase. Topics of inquiry remained 

centralised on divorce issues (80%), followed by housing problems 

(65.2%), and maintenance payment issues (59.6%) (Chart 6). Of these, 

more than 1/5th  (19.2%) of the women stated that they had planned or 

attempted suicide while they were going through a divorce.

Weekend Tea Receptions
In 2014-15, 116 of the women who visited the Free Legal Advice Clinic 

participated in our bimonthly weekend tea receptions hosted by the 

peer counsellors. During these receptions, women share their personal 

experiences, particularly those of marriage troubles, and how things 

have improved for them. Such an exchange enables women who are 

currently experiencing marital difficulties to find encouragement and 

mutual support, to gradually find their footing again post-divorce. During 

the receptions, the peer counsellors also go over relevant legislation 

and the available social resources, giving attendees greater access to 

information and relieving their stress. 

Peer Counsellor Training
This year, seven women underwent peer counsellor training over six 

sessions held between 4 October and 13 November 2014. Topics covered 

included the role of the counsellor, conduct, myths about modern 

marriage and its challenges, family law, and the clinic’s operations. The 

training included lectures and case analysis, enabling the counsellors to 

comprehend the situation that their service targets might be in, as well as 

their service targets’ feelings. The training also enabled the counsellors 

to assist women from different backgrounds. After undergoing training, 

they were required to undergo a three-month-long trial period. The 

counsellors help run the Free Legal Advice Clinic using their perspectives 

as women who had been through a similar struggle before. 

I escaped from abused family and entered shelter, I urged to divorce and 
leave the one who have hurt my kid and I as soon as possible. But one of 
my friend told me that I have to pass through two years of separation before 
divorce proceed. I was so anxious and money was running out, I just applied 
CSSA but but it could not be granted due to some situations. 

Fortunately, I was told that there is a Legal Advice Clinic. Lawyer there 
solved all of my questions, I do not have to wait for two years for the divorce 
proceed. Social worker in HKFWC introduced other social resources to me 
which brighten me up. As well, they helped me to contact staff in Social 
Security department in the Social Welfare Department and completed my 
CSSA application. Although there are many challenges and changes in the 
future, HKFWC’s support gave us confident on starting our new page.
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Case Counselling and  
Group Work
Introduction
The HKFWC provides individual case counselling and group support 

services from the perspective of women, for women who are faced 

with marital problems, abuse, or emotional stress. We help counsellees 

examine their issues in individual meetings and group activities so they 

can gain a better understanding of who they are and explore their 

personal strengths. We also assist women in need with assessing their 

situations and helping them learn of new resources available to them. 

These in turn raise their ability to face adversity and contribute to their 

physical and mental health. We also refer counsellees to other social 

service agencies should the need arise.

Focal Points and Results for 2014-15
The HKFWC provided case counseling services to 117 women in  

2014-15. Of the total counsellees served, 45.5% were married, 30.4% 

were divorced, and 13.4% were separated from their spouses (Chart 8). 

Callers were predominately middle-aged or older, with a higher number 

aged 50 or above (28), followed by those aged 40-44 (24), aged 30-34 

(20), and aged 35-39 (20) (Chart 7).

Mental distress was the main topic of enquiry, followed by marital 

and cohabitation relations, economic issues, and legal matters  

(Chart 9). Of the callers we assisted with mental distress, the 

majority were experiencing emotional distress, including anxiety and 

depression. Of those with marital and cohabitation issues, many 

reported experiencing personality clashes with their spouses as well as 

communication troubles, and some reported being the victim of spousal 

affairs. 
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Mrs Chow (pseudonym)
Case Counselling Services 

Counsellee

Five years ago, I discovered that my husband was having an affair. It was a bolt from the blue. My spirits were so 
low, and then I was in an accident and nearly died. Lying broken in bed, I was convinced that it was not worth it to 
give my life for love. Then I met a woman from the HKFWC who helped me look for a way to resolve my situation. 

I wanted to divorce. However the man who was taking advantage of me was unwilling to do so. I also lacked the 
ability to be economically independent and my physical health did not allow me to be self-reliant. The aftermath of 
accident haunted me, and I still needed economic support from my spouse. 

With her support, I actually had the strength to keep fighting. I conveyed my needs to my husband and son 
peacefully, and sought a solution that would be acceptable to my husband. 

In the end, I got the freedom I wanted, along with the home and a small alimony. Finally, I have achieved a bit of 
autonomy of my own. 



                                                                                                              

                                                                          

            

Of our callers, 37.61% reported being victims of abuse (Chart 10). More 

than 90% (93.18%) of these counsellees had suffered mental and 

emotional abuse, and more than 60% (63.64%) had suffered physical 

abuse (Chart 11). In more than 90% of the abuse cases, the abuser was 

a spouse or partner (97.72%). Many of the counsellees also reported 

having experienced serious mental distress, with 18.80% stating that 

they had attempted suicide (Chart 12).

We also organised a total of 11 mutual aid groups in addition to our 

counselling services in 2014-15. The groups enabled women dealing 

with various problems to build close support networks and discuss 

methods to improve their situations. It also enabled them to share social 

resources with each other. Women were thus able to improve their 

difficult situations through the use of self-help, mutual assistance, self-

reliance, and self-empowerment.

Wonders of Joy: Taking Charge of Emotions
From May to July, the Jockey Club Lai Kok Centre conducted a 

programme to assess the effectiveness of the Strengths-Based Cognitive 

Behavioural Therapy Group dealing with women’s negative emotions. A 

total of 58 women experiencing marital and mental distress participated 

in the programme. The results were encouraging and demonstrated 

positive change. Participants filled out self-assessment questionnaires 

after completing four clinical groups and a workshop. These revealed 

that the emotional states of 92.3% of participants had shown 

improvement from participating in the clinical group
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Sau-kwan 
Re-employment 
Training Course 

Graduate

Economic 
Empowerment

I am a graduate of class 51 of the post-natal care course. I’m really happy 
that I took the course. Our instructor was extremely professional. She 
guided us to learn how to care for new-born children and the duties of a 
post-natal care worker. 

Encouraged by our instructor, I quickly found my first post-natal care 
position once I'd completed the course. For someone so new to the field, it 
was certainly a big challenge. But the instructor was constantly available 
to help me by phone, so I successfully completed my first job as a post-
natal worker thanks to her on-call tutelage. 

I also must thank the HKFWC and the Agent Bong household marketplace 
service, for helping me find my next position – thank you, HKFWC!



Women’s Re-employment Scheme
Introduction
Since 1998, the HKFWC has offered the Talent Development Programme, 

a series of courses oriented toward underprivileged women by aiding 

them to gain skills to become supporting members of the economy. 

Supported by funding from the Employees Retraining Board, the courses 

cover a variety of trades aimed at assisting women in acquiring work 

skills and developing their abilities to equip them to re-enter the labour 

market; thus promoting women’s economic autonomy.

Focal Points and Results for 2014-15
In 2014-15, a total of 986 women received training from 27 full-time 

placement-tide courses and 19 half-day non-placement-tide courses 

offered by the HKFWC. A total of 897 students completed their courses 

and received certificates for their study. 

A total of 524 women completed the fill-time courses that included 

placement services were provided no less than three months of 

employment assistance and job-matching services to help them find 

successful employment. The job-matching services in 2014-15 had an 

average entry rate of over 80%.

In addition to helping women increase their income, providing such 

employment training, skills promotion, and support services promotes 

and encourages women to leave their house-hold framework and 

enhance their personal capacity and practical economic autonomy.

Recruitment and Course Introduction Day
On 21 November 2014, we held The Power of Women Retraining 

Planning Day at the Wah Ming Shopping Centre in Fanling with support 

from the Employees Retraining Board. The event’s aim was to promote 

the many courses available to people in the region and enrol them. 

We demonstrated some of the skills people could learn in the courses, 

including pet grooming, floral arrangements, and post-natal care 

  

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

expertise. We also held a Training and Recruitment Day for Women on  

27 March 2015. We collected more than 100 applications during the 

event. More than 30 women had on-site interviews for positions such as 

out-patient visit escorts, nurse attendants, nursing assistants, couriers, 

food service operators, and production staff. Our partner groups 

included SF Express, the Buddhist Po Ching Care-and-Attention Home for 

the Aged Women, and Maxim’s Foods. We also reached more than 50 

members of the local community in our promotions and demonstrations 

of several of our retraining courses.
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I wanted to go into the floral business after completing the floral design course in July 2014. 
However I didn't dare to go into business on my own because of the high start-up costs. Thanks to 
the encouragement of my colleagues from the HKFWC, I and another graduate of the course went 
into business together as members of the self-employed team. 

I am very grateful to the HKFWC for lending us space and helping with publicity, which lessened our 
anxieties about the shop location. I am also very thankful to the HKFWC staff, who do not mind that 
we so often use their space and make it a bit messy. To the contrary, they work with us, for which I 
am so extremely grateful.

Shuk-yee 
Re-employment Training 
Course Graduate



Co-operatives
Co-operatives which women organise, operate, and finance own their 

own, not only empower women at the basic level to develop alternate 

employment opportunities through equal relations of cooperation and 

mutual assistance, but also warrants them to develop their expertise 

and create a source of income. It also increases their self-confidence.

The HKFWC has assisted a group of women at the grassroots level to 

form the Women’s Green Life Workers Co-operative Society, Limited and 

the Women’s Healthy Living Workers Co-operative Society, Limited to aid 

this cause.

The Women’s Green Life Workers Co-operative Society, Ltd., was formally 

registered in December 2001. It has operated independently in its entirety 

for more than a decade. The HKFWC continues to serve as an advisor to 

the Co-op and provides it with the office space and basic supplies. The 

co-operative mostly provided cleaning services in 2014-15. They often 

were met with a shortage of manpower, unable to service their clients 

due to not having enough workers.

The Women’s Healthy Living Workers Co-operative Society, Limited, was 

formally registered on May 2007. Its administrative and co-operative 

affairs are now handled by its members, while the HKFWC continues to 

provide advice and assistance from the sidelines. The Women’s Healthy 

Living Workers Co-operative Society, Limited, experienced healthy 

development in their business in 2014-15, and their projected operational 

quota has increased in kind.

Women’s Economic Empowerment 
Self-employed Project
Introduction
The HKFWC has been active in advancing women’s economic 

empowerment. We have promoted women’s economic autonomy at 

many levels by building networks of employers, promoting friendly 

working conditions for women with employers, providing job referral 

services, and conducting job fairs to help women find employment.

Focal Points and Results for 2014-15
Job Referral Services
The HKFWC Jockey Club Tai Wo Centre continued to provide job referral 

services in 2014-15, reaching 368 people. We built networks for individual 

job seekers and employers, including post-natal care, child and infant 

care, domestic help, outpatient visit escorts, and elderly care. We also 

created a new platform for many types of positions with commercial 

employers. 

Self-employment Programme for Re-employment 
Graduates

 Florist

Since September 2014, we have formed five corps of self-employed 

women selling flowers in Flora’s Workshop. They create floral bouquets, 

pompoms, basket arrangements, and boutonnieres. They have had 

dozens of orders in just half a year – 20 basket arrangements and 

30 bouquets. In February 2015 alone, they sold 20 bouquets, an 

encouraging achievement. The corps have several projects planned for 

the coming year, including expanding business interest through more 

online advertising and holding promotions during holidays and the 

graduation season.

 Doggie Bathhouse
Many of the graduates of our pet grooming course find it difficult 

to throw themselves into the fierce competition in the pet grooming 

industry due to worries of being too old or lacking experience. Moreover, 

positions in the industry are few, and the working hours can be ten or 

more. As a result, women – especially the family caregivers – can find it 

hard to enter the profession. 

In light of this, we entered discussions with graduates from our first pet 

grooming course in May 2014, agreeing that the HKFWC would advertise 

a new service, the Doggie Bathhouse to pet owners in the community. 

The service provides cost-effective, professional pet grooming services 

and aims to let women increase their confidence and gain experience so 

they could opt to pursue pet grooming as a career. We help graduates of 

our pet grooming courses become members of the Doggie Bathhouse. 

As of the end of this year, graduates of five Foundation Certificate in Pet 

Grooming courses have joined the bathhouse, and have providing dog 

grooming services more than 50 times. A number of the graduates, 

having gained sufficient experience, obtained positions in professional 

grooming shops. Doggie Bathhouse is also discussing expanding to 

the home-based grooming services. It can be seen that the corps have 

succeeded in helping graduates gain the confidence needed to enter the 

labour market, giving women economic autonomy.
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Health 
Empowerment

Caregivers network links between  
community and professional groups

Provides all-rounded suport,  
guarantee caregivers' welfare



Make A Difference:  
Building a Sustainable  
Cross-sectoral Carers’ Support 
Network
Limited by traditional gender roles and stereotypes, women can be 

easily seen as a family’s caregiver and left to shoulder the task of caring 

for everyone at home – from the elderly, to the children, to the chronically 

ill, to even those with disabilities. Carers constantly and consistently 

extend their mental and physical energy to serve the members of the 

household, only to go unrecognized for their efforts, both, at home and 

in the community. Beginning July 2012, the HKFWC launched the Make 

A Difference: Building a Sustainable Cross-sectoral Carers’ Support 

Network project with support from the Community Investment And 

Inclusion Fund. Its activities are tailor-made to suit carers’ needs, and 

linking groups and professional bodies from many regions to improve 

carers’ quality of life and well-being.

Focal Points and Results for 2014-15
In 2014-15, a total of 112 carers and their families participated in events 

and workshops within the project. We recorded attendance by 21,000 

members of the public, across all project activities in the year.

House Captains Training Workshop
This project puts the House Captains as a majority strategy of their 

programme. The House Captains are an important element to 

maintaining social networks. Much like the community leaders, the 

House Capitains strengthen ties between carers and their community. 

We held three House Captains training workshops this year that were 

attended by 45 women in total.

Peer Volunteer Training Workshops
We held three peer volunteer training workshops in 2014-15 for carers 

wishing to become House Captains. A total of 35 carers attended. Our 

vision for such training workshops is that volunteering will encourage 

each carer to support their compatriots as well as provide a perspective 

on the different kinds of concerns that a carer may have. Once they 

have completed the training, the carers become House Captains. Many 

take the initiative to form carer support groups and regularly meet to 

speak about carers’ needs, which serves as a support group, providing 

constant encouragement and mutual aid to the carers. 
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One day last year, Ms Kwong gave me a ring and invited me to take a course at the HKFWC, and I went without a thought. 
The first time I heard of the House Captains, I thought it sounded really strange and no idea what it could be. In the beginning, 
I found that it was quite difficult to get connected with people I didn't know when I needed to pay attention to the carers and 
neighbours around me. They weren’t willing to communicate.  But I only needed to be patient and sincere, and we gradually 
would start building a relationship. 

Chee-wan and Ching-ching took me on home visits and, in winter, we brought soup to carers. We would bring them blessings 
and empathise with their needs, listening attentively to titbits from their lives. 

Many carers are often part of an elderly couple for whom moving is not easy, with one caring for their weaker spouse – this 
showed me the importance of one’s health. Though their lives are simple, they take joy in their life. There’s a lot that I can learn 
from that sentiment.

The same goes for my fellow Captains. We all have a different style when we assist with preparations for the neighbours 
concern campaign, which also a new experience for me. My entire time with the House Captains, being able to help people 
in the community in this way – having exchanges, seeing everyone’s smiling face – it’s been rewarding. In just a little time, you 
can develop a sense of self-reliance. I gained a lot from it, much of it unexpected. The House Captain programme has made 
my life more rich and wonderful.

Wan Ying-tai
House Captain 



Walking with Carers Networking Events
We organised 23 networking events in 2014-15 for the carers, including 

health talks, workshops on nourishing diets, day camps, and tours. 310 

carers participated in total. At these events, apart from learning from 

the various workshops, the carers also build groups of mutual trust and 

assistance. These self-help groups provide support by lending a safe 

space to share and alleviate stress in times of distress. 

Community Exhibitions
The House Captains were actively involved in the 27 community 

publicity and street exhibitions organised in Tai Wo Estate. These 

exhibitions were held at the Tai Po Old Market and at clinics and 

housing estates in the Tai Po district in 2014-15. The exhibitions brought 

information to the carers in the district who were in need of support. 

The exhibitions reached 11,550 people. The House Captains participated  

73 times. 

Cross-Organisation Professional Network
We continued our partnership with the Traditional Chinese Medicine (TCM) 

Department of the United Christian Nethersole Community Health Service 

in 2014-15. We organized two talks on traditional Chinese medicine, 

three clinical sessions on TCM, and two courses on holistic emotional 

health, which were attended by 131 people. The courses combined TCM 

theory and social work, allowing carers to gain practical experience in 

areas such as acupressure, nourishing exercises, breathing exercises, 

and relaxation techniques to reduce stress and various ailments. This 

was combined with positive thinking theory to improve their body  

and mind. 

We also formed a cross-sectoral committee which met twice. Aimed at 

building a platform for representatives from various groups and volunteer 

projects to exchange views, the committee strategises how to support 

the needs of carers in the community, so that they can build sufficient 

social capital. Representatives from five groups present at the meetings 

included: Chung Ngon-ying of Manulife, Lam Yin-wan and Robert Ng 

Koon-man of Missional Church, House Captains representative Lo Miu-

sheung, carers representatives Ip Mo-ching and Chung Yu, and public 

nutritionist Pong Chi-yan.

We also networked with various groups in the district to hold 10 sessions 

of Recharging Stations for the Soul in 2014-15, reaching 52 people total. 

The sessions were designed to bring emotional nourishment to carers. 

They were themed around topics such as cultivating positive psychology, 

enhancing personal resilience, and managing emotions. 

In 2014-15 we organised four life-planning workshops to help women 

cope with their future possibilities and security. Insurance professionals 

were invited to speak during these workshops. A total of 43 women 

attended the events. Workshops focused on financial management, 

insurance, and wealth management analysis. To support their future, 

carers learned about financial restructuring, how to calculate and plan 

expenditures, and about fiscal adjustment. 
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In addition to these employment events, we also put on educational skits 

related to employment. The preparatory workshops, performances, and 

promotional activities amounted to 30 hours of hard work. We invited 

an artist to work with 16 women to explore the stories women holding 

two roles – carer and worker – using the medium of community theatre. 

Using practical lessons and exercises, the artist taught them to balance 

the pressures they face in their lives and cultivate their artistic ability. 

They wrote several skits – Exhausted Amy, Age Discrimination, Timid May, 

and The Joy of Volunteering – that incorporated the many observations 

and insights gained from women whom they had interviewed and 

visited, as well as their own practical experience.

In the end, 11 women attended the workshops and wrote and performed 

the skits. We held three performances in Sham Shui Po, Kwai Chung, 

and Tin Shui Wai, and promoted them. Their performances took 

the audience on an exploration of the struggle women face when 

looking for a job. Community theatre is a soft approach to promoting 

community resources that support women in getting the employment 

choices they are due. Women writing and performing their own skits 

is a demonstration of what women can do, which also gives us the 

opportunity to interact and engage with women in our community and 

explore the difficulties they face when searching for jobs – and what to 

do to resolve them. It also lets us introduce resources for training and 

job referrals. The performances were met with eager response, having 

resonated strongly with their audiences. They reached 1,530 people 

during the three performance and promotional activities.

Women in Charge of Their 
Employability
We held the Women in Charge of Their Employability campaign from 

August 2014 to January 2015, a women’s development project supported 

the Women’s Commission. The project aimed to explore the difficulties 

and restrictions facing women seeking employment and what can be 

done to support them, as well as raise awareness of what women 

face in their job searches. It also aimed to raise their capacity and 

competence and introduce them to resources to promote their economic 

participation. It further aimed them a platform to apply for jobs to 

facilitate their job searches. Finally, it aimed to provide women with a 

positive work-life balance and promote the health of women filling dual 

roles at work and at home. 

We held a variety of events related to women’s employment. We held 

two talks on employment in Sham Shui Po and Tai Po, which were 

attended by 40 participants. The talks acquainted participants with 

entering the floral design and post-natal care professions.

Two Mobile Re-employment Info Exhibitions were held in Tai Po and 

Fanling that reached 850 people. The exhibitions promoted women-

friendly employment options, including training courses for women out 

of work, as well as childcare services in the region that would enable 

women to concentrate their efforts on looking for a job and free up the 

time to work. 

A recruitment fair was held in Un Chau Estate in Sham Shui Po. The fair 

provided women a platform to assist their job searches and introduced 

them to training and employment information. Several businesses were 

invited to hold on-site interviews at the fair. A total of 42 women were 

interviewed during the event, and 7 were offered jobs on the spot.

2014/15  Annual Report          28  |  31



 



Focal Points and Results for 2014-15
Vegetables and Bread of Love
The HKFWC and its partner volunteers visit the markets in Sham 

Shui Po’s Po On Road and Pei Ho Street every Monday to Friday to 

collect donations of produce from more than 80 vendors starting  

28 October, 2014. We also go to six bakeries in the district to collect the 

day’s unsold bread every weekday except Thursday. The volunteers take 

the Vegetables and Bread of Love, that they have collected to the Jockey 

Club Lai Kok Centre. The collection is divided into sets to be distributed to 

the low-income families and elderly in the district. 

Papier Maché Pandas
The Jockey Club Lai Kok Centre held a workshop arranged by Bless 

Hong Kong and PMQ to create papier machok. An instructor and ten 

volunteers taught 25 women and children to make pandas during the 

workshop. This was a part of a global campaign launched in 2008 by 

the World Wildlife Fund and French artist Paulo Grangeon. Recycled 

paper was used to create paper pandas in different sizes, which 

became hand-crafted art representing the few remaining wild pandas 

worldwide. Our participants’ individual creativity emerged as they 

earnestly worked – each panda was a unique work of art. Every woman 

and child participating in the activity was joyful and content as they took 

home a papier maché panda made by their own hands.

“Cherish Food”:  
Food Sharing Programme
Introduction
The HKFWC Jockey Club Lai Kok Centre kicked off its food-sharing 

programme Cherish Food in September 2012. The programme is set to 

run for three years and is supported by the Food Share Fund. It aims to 

reduce food waste while also easing the financial burden and stress of 

low-income families in the Sham Shui Po District. Cherish Food volunteers 

visit the district’s wet markets and vendors to collect the unsold food 

to distribute it to low-income families and elderly in the district. In  

2014-15, Cherish Food collected a total of 70,958.59 kg of produce, of 

which 66,996.65 kg were fresh produce and 3,961.94 kg of dried goods. 

This service served the beneficiaries a total of 29,348 times.
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Food Waste Recycling
We continued to be an active agent in the Lai Kok Estate Food Recycling 

Scheme run in association with the Hong Kong Housing Authority Lai Kok 

Estate Office and Friends of the Earth. We sift and sort through produce 

every time it is collected for recycling, those deemed no longer good 

for consumption are sent to the estate’s food waste collection point. A 

contractor recycles the food waste by processing it into fish fodder. By the 

scheme’s end in July 2014, approximately 2,144.6 kg of inedible produce 

had been recycled into fish fodder.  We then started our search for a new 

partner so we could keep recycling food waste, and in September 2014 

we partnered with Lam Chung Organic Farm, which collected food waste 

and turned them into compost.

Public Education
 Food Collection Tour

Beginning August 2013, we joined hands with Friends of the Earth to 

hold a wet market Food Collection team. Apart from Friends of the 

Earth, coperates, schools and NGOs also approached us for the tour. In  

2014-15, more than 275 students and corporate staff joined the tour. 

We hope that the Food Collection Tour could help more groups in the 

community to recognise the importance of food and to be cognizant of 

food wastage.

 Sharing Forum on the Cherish Food Campaign: 
 How Can We Cherish Food?
On 18 October 2014, volunteers from our Cherish Food programme 

were invited by Friends of the Earth to share their experiences in a 

forum. The head of our Jockey Club Lai Kok Centre and two Cherish 

Food ambassadors shared their strategies for mobilising people in the 

community. The volunteers also shared some of their experiences and 

how the programme had changed them. The volunteers spoke of joys 

and hardships of the programme, such as how exhausting it could be 

to transport the food in the heat, yet difficult when it is so cold that their 

hands felt that they may not open. And yet, they said that they found 

redistributing food extremely fulfilling. The feeling of competence they 

built up, the networks they expanded, the many little wisdoms they had 

learnt during their participation were all rare experiences of a lifetime – 

and they had raised their awareness of the how cherishing food impacts 

the environment as well.

 Estate Waste Reduction Competition and 
 Trading Event
We held a series of activities in Lai Kok Estate from October 2014 to 

March 2015 with support from the Housing Department Lai Kok Estate 

Management Advisory Committee. Centred around waste reduction, 

they included a trading event, tea sessions, a competition for the 

household and buildings that reduced the most waste, hanging slogans 

around the estate, and colouring competitions. We held the Estate 

Trading Day and Award Ceremony on 7 February in conjunction with the 

Lai Kok Estate Management Advisory Committee. The event had plenty 

of activities that were warmly received by the community, with awards 

for the estate waste reduction competition along with community trading 

and a gaming booth where participants competed to be the best at 

reducing waste at the source. The day had a festive atmosphere. More 

than 500 people attended, and lines were never too long at the booth.

There was an evident reduction of waste in the estate following this 

series of activities; the amount of waste from both the individual 

households and building overall has experienced a slight decrease. We 

hope that the events were successful in promoting a culture of waste 

reduction at source, taking good care of things, donating old items, and 

being moderate in consumption.

Everyone has their habits when brushing their teeth and washing up. I have a habit as well, namely 
going to put together food and parcels. Many also know that I make a habit of playing mah-jong, 
but no one will come ask me to play on Mondays, because they know that that’s when I’m putting 
together food for the programme.

Looking back, I’ve been gathering food for two years now. During that time, I’ve got to meet a number 
of folk who are getting on further in the years than me. It breaks my heart that for many seniors, it isn’t 
an easy thing to take a cane and a plastic bag to get their veggies, and my family doesn’t know just 
how to store our many plastic and reusable shopping bags.

I had been thinking about the uneven distribution of social resources, so I called together my circle of 
friends to collect the plastic and reusable shopping bags they had sitting around the home to donate. 
They were curious about why I was collecting them, so I told them about the food collection service, 
hoping that my experience and feelings for the programme could infect others and spur them to 
joining in.

Over these two years, I felt a sense of calling, and saying that may be a bit righteous and old-
fashioned, but it’s true – I’ve kept to it! I want to work with the HKFWC and use my two hands to bridge 
the gap and assist members in our community who lack resources.
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Community Participation in Tai Po 
and North District
Co-ordinating Committee on Family &  
Child Welfare Services
In 2014-15, the Jockey Club Tai Wo Centre was again invited to serve as 

a member of the Social Welfare Department Tai Po and North District 

Coordinating Committee on Family and Child Welfare Services. The 

Center will be promoting the Tai Po Cares Movement 2014-2016. The 

working group decided their 2014-2016 programme, Spreading Love 

and Building Gratitude. The programme promotes the spirit of caring 

throughout six large public housing estates in Tai Po via community 

education events. We organised more than 20 volunteers to help plan 

events. They also made home visits, connecting with more than 20 low-

income families in Tai Ho Estate to offer direct assistance or brief them 

on community resources.

Volunteer Service Promotion Coordinating 
Committee
Jockey Club Tai Wo Centre member Yuen Wai-yee is serving as our 

Tai Wo Centre's representative member for 2014-2016 in the Volunteer 

Service Promotion Coordinating Committee under the Social Welfare 

Department Tai Po/North District Planning and Coordinating Team, as 

well as a member of the Committee’s Working Group on Community 

Inclusion Activities. 

On 25 October 2014, the working group held its launching ceremony, 

themed Fermenting Inclusion. They invited a number of groups from the 

Tai Po region to participate, and members of the Community Mamas 

lead the audience of more than 200 people from all walks of life in 

making enzymes. These enzymes were then turned into cleansers and 

donated to persons and families in need in the Tai Po/North District on  

7 February 2015.

Community Project to Bring Attention to 
Women’s Well-being
The Jockey Club Tai Wo Centre launched the Community Project to Bring 
Attention to Women’s Well-being in Tai Po from July to December 2014 

with support from the Social Welfare Department Working Group on 

Caring for the Community. The aim of the project was to rouse women in 

the region to pay greater attention to their mental health and learn how 

to spot mood disorders through early indentification. 

The project successfully recruited and trained 15 volunteers to become 

women's mental and physical health ambassadors. Further, we held 

two Day of Concern for Women’s  Health events in Tai Yuen Estate on 

31 August and Tai Wo Plaza on 15 November, during which we reached 

228 members of the community.

Sustainable Development Project
The HKFWC has launched several sustainable development projects in 

Tai Po since 2006. We have trained and organized women to become 

Community Mamas involved in promoting sustainable lifestyles.

“Upcycling Tai Po” Project
Introduction
The 18-month Upcycling Tai Po project was launched from December 

2013 to May 2015 with support from the Sustainable Development Fund.

We held 90 events with the project 2014-15: 48 home upcycling 

workshops, two community road shows, eight upcycling workshops for 

the business community, six lectures on recycling, 12 monthly meetings 

of the Community Mamas, 12 field workshops, an upcycling art and 

design competition, and an arts and crafts fair. The events, publications, 

and website were well-attended and received by 60,025 women, 

employees, and members of the community.

The project actively engaged with the business community through 

the cooperation of the Business Environment Council, who introduced 

us to business concepts, resources, and networks. Based on our own 

strengths, we developed many contributions to create a model of cross-

sectoral cooperation meeting each party’s needs and worked together to 

promote models of sustainable lifestyles.

Focal Points and Results for 2014-15
 Development of New Products

We worked with two designers referred by the Business Environment 

Council as well as the local charity School of Everyday Life – and the 

great work of the Community Mamas – to develop 18 varieties of three 

different types of upcycled products. We turned old clothing into 10 

different styles of pet clothing, and six fabric crafts – corsages, crochet 

jewellery, insulted bowl cosies, cushions, and two styles of reusable 

shopping bags. We also upcycled recovered waste leather into coin 

purses, and discarded furniture into home furnishings.

 Community Mamas Upcycling Workshop
Since the Community Mamas were formed in 2006, they have explored 

how to implement sustainable lifestyle models in the community via 

mutual exchanges and sharing as well as lectures by professionals. The 

programme also aims to elevate mentors who would promote these 

models to the public and business community.

In 2014-15, 21 Community Mamas learned how to create new upcycled 

products in workshops where they invited environmental designers and 

representatives from the School of Everyday Life to instruct them in new 

methods and designs. The mamas held 12 workshops this year, with an 

accumulated attendance of 176.
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 Community Mamas Monthly Meet-up
The Community Mamas hold monthly meet-ups to organise and 

train women ambassadors of sustainable development. During the 

meetings, they share new things, hold discussions, and learn from 

each other's knowledge; their discussions also touch upon sustainable 

development policy as well. The mamas held 12 meetings this year, with 

an accumulated attendance of 154.

 Home Upcycling Workshop
The Community Mamas organised 48 upcycling workshops this year 

on a variety of topics, which had an accumulated attendance of 949 

members of the community. The workshop topics included environmental 

enzymes, upcycled cloth crafts, environmentally friendly soap, and 

stained glass art. The mamas leading the workshops introduced the 

community to sustainable lifestyle models. They helped participants 

understand that, with a bit of creativity, rubbish can be upcycled into 

something useful for the home.

 Upcycling Design Competition
The upcycling art and design competition gave awards for the most 

artistic and creative design, the best use of waste design, and the most 

popular design. We received 37 entries from many groups and sectors, 

including schools, organisations, businesses, and members of the 

community. During the voting period, 2,382 people chose their favourite 

designs online.

 Community Road Shows
This year, we held community road shows exhibiting a number of our 

upcycled products in Sheung Shui Plaza and Mikiki, the San Po Kong 

shopping centre that is the only in Hong Kong to permit pets on its 

premises. Student assistants explained the concept of sustainable 

development to the approximate 52,000 members of the community 

who visited the road shows. 

 Beneficial Upcycling Workshops for the 
 Commercial Sector
We worked with businesses to hold eight upcycling workshops for 

their staff in 2014-15. The workshops were attended by 220 people 

from Crystal Group, Hong Kong International Terminals, Hysan Group, 

National Australian Bank, Great Eagle Centre, and KPMG.

 Recycling Seminar
We put on six seminars in 2014-15 on recycling in Hong Kong that were 

attended by 144 people. The seminars covered different sectors where 

recycling and waste reduction efforts are being made, including Food 

Grace, Hong Kong's first food recycling group; Woodrite, Hong Kong’s 

first “local-to-local” furniture company; Hong Kong Green Life; Good 

Family Homeware, a second-hand furniture group; Hong Chi Jockey 

Club Glass Bottle Recycling Project; and Sealed Air, a sustainability-driven 

specialty packaging group.

 Arts and Crafts Fair
On 21-22 March 2015, we held a trial sale of our upcycled products at 

the Jockey Club Creative Arts Centre to see whether our designs were 

suited to the market. Around 4,000 people were in attendance over the 

two days of the fair.

Affordable Childcare Services  
Free Work-ready Women to Develop 
Themselves
Since 2012, we have advocated for an increase in the quota of childcare 

services, carers allowance, and family-friendly policies which would 

allow low-income women to enjoy the right to choose to stay home and 

care for their children or enter the labour market. 

We provide affordable childcare services to make up for the lack in the 

community with limited resources so that low-income women can have 

an economical option. They are able to take advantage of their free time 

to serve the community, work, or develop their abilities.

In 2014-15, in addition to continuing our after-school childcare programme 

at the Jockey Club Lai Kok Centre, which we wholly finance on our own, 

the Jockey Club Tai Wo Centre also started offering after-school childcare 

services and launched the Mutual Help Child Care Centre. 

After-school Childcare Services
The Jockey Club Lai Kok Centre has offered after-school childcare 

services for more than seven years. In 2014-15, more than 20 volunteer 

tutors provided nearly 4,200 hours of after-school care to 14 children 

from low-income families. Through these tutoring services, women were 

free to work while their children's academic performance improved. 

What they learned would change their lives. 

Compassionate Nanny Childcare Services 
(Mutual Help Child Care Centre)
Our Mutual Help Child Care Centre has around 30 registered nannies to 

constantly provide childcare assistance. From the centre’s formal date 

of registration on 24 October 2014 to March 2015, we have provided 

childcare services to 509 children between the ages of 0 to 6, as well 

as to a number of primary school aged children over school holidays. 

A total of 79 women are registered to use the service, the majority 

of whom require childcare so that they can work or look after other 

members of the family.

After-school Childcare and Subsidies to Help 
Women Seeking Employment
With aim to support women looking for a job, the Jockey Club Tai Wo 

Centre has offered after-school childcare services since 1 September 2014 

with support from the Hong Kong Yin Shin Leung Charitable Foundation. 

A total of 16 women made use of our services in 2014-15, of whom 12 

managed to secure employment. This reflects that there is a significant 

necessity amongst many mothers in the district, who previously had 

been full-time housewives, to have jobs of their own.
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Advocacy



Univeral Pension
Retirement protection in Hong Kong mainly relies on the three-pillar 

model – personal savings, mandatory provident fund (MPF), and 

comprehensive social security assistance (CSSA) – which are all linked 

with employment. And this model excludes unpaid domestic workers, 

the majority of whom are housewives. With this in mind, we have for 

many years joined voices with many other groups to call on the Hong 

Kong government to establish a universal pension system from which all 

Hong Kongers can benefit. 

As the calls for pensions from the public continues to strengthen, the 

government cannot but face up to the issue. It has established a Social 

Security and Retirement Protection Task Force under the Commission 

on Poverty. It also has delegated HKU Professor Nelson Chow Wing-

sun to form a research advisory group on The Future Development of 

Retirement Protection in Hong Kong.

Introductory Seminar on Universal Pensions
To increase awareness of universal pensions, we invited representatives 

from the Alliance for Universal Pension to give an introduction to their 

universal pension proposal on 22 May 2014. The energetic discussions 

reflected the participants' desire for pension protection. Eight of our 

members were present, actively engaging in the discussion. They gained 

an understanding of such details as how to ensure the programme's 

sustainability as well as tax-related issues like set inheritance and  

wine taxes.

We also co-organised a regional consultation with the Alliance for 

Universal Pension on 24 October 2015. Held in Lai Kok Community Hall, 

the consultation was attended by 16 of our members who discussed the 

methods of funding and proposals for implementing universal pensions 

along with other residents from the area. The discussions proceeded 

quite well; there was a deal of debate on who would be eligible for 

pensions, the role of financial groups in financing the programme, and 

abolishing MPF. We will continue advocating for the government to 

establish a universal pension system and provide protection to all Hong 

Kongers so they can live out their retirement in dignity.

Universal Pension Campaign
Cheng Kwai-fan, a member of the Hong Kong Homemakers’ Alliance, 

served as our representative at the March for the Universal Pension 

organised by the Alliance for Universal Pension on 20 July 2014. She gave 

a speech during the event on how housewives do not have any pensions 

at present. She called on the government to allow every woman to live 

out their retirement in dignity by establishing a pension system as quickly  

as possible.
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The first time I participated in an HKFWC event was when I joined a friend for their Mother’s Day action. I didn’t 
know anything back then. If something happened at home, I didn’t know how to handle it. I was so busy with 
watching over my kids as well. I was full of anxiety and came to the centre to find someone I could pour out 
my heart to. 

I eventually joined the Childcare Concern Group. We meet with our fellow sisters, visit government officials, 
fight four our rights, and so many other things. 

I feel that there is a lack of support for women in society, like how there isn't enough free spaces in the quota 
for childcare -- so many sisters want to work, but are forced to give it up to care for their children. 

I’m happier and more optimistic since joining the Childcare Concern Group. I’ve come to know many fellow 
sisters, and we help each other out. I’m no longer afraid whenever a problem comes my way, because we’re 
all here to support each other. 

Ip Chun-lan
Member, Childcare  

Concern Group

 



Advocacy Project on  
Increasing Childcare Support for 
Low-income Families
Introduction
The Advocacy Project on Forming a Childcare Support Scheme for 

Low-income Families was launched in March 2012. It is now entering 

its third year. In 2014-15, our operations included forming a concern 

group, holding policy seminars, meeting with government officials and 

LegCo members, and conducting exchanges with other groups. The 

project raises women’s self-confidence, abilities, and awareness of their 

situation while also building tighter community support networks. It also 

advocates for appropriate childcare support policies so women can 

develop themselves, improve their lives, and create a balance between 

the stress they endure at work and at home.

Focal Points and Results for 2014-15
Childcare Concern Group
Presently the Childcare Concern Group has around 15 members, who 

predominately come from underprivileged families in Sham Shui Po. 

Some have left their jobs to care for their children after being unable to 

find appropriate and affordable childcare services, while others wish to 

be stay-at-home mothers, yet are unable to due to economic constraints. 

These sisters meet once a month to discuss the group’s strategies 

and direction as well as give each other the support they need. They 

have formed a mutually encouraging social circle and are building a 

community support network.

Face-to-face Appeals to Power
We were invited by the Democratic Party to meet with Secretary for 

Labour and Welfare Matthew Cheung Kin-chung on 19 May 2014 along 

with representatives from the Tin Shui Wai Community Development 

Network and the Hong Kong Women Workers’ Association. Our 

representative, So-wah, appealed for an increase in the quota for spaces 

in childcare services. The Secretary responded that they are seeking 

to increase the number of independent Child Care Centres across ten 

districts of Hong Kong, each of which would have 100 spaces – a total 

increase of 1,000 open spaces in independent Child Care Centres. The 

discussions also touched upon the feasibility of turning the Mutual Help 

Child Care Centre into a government-funded centre. 

On 5 June 2014, our representatives attended the 2014 Welfare Agenda 

and Priorities Setting (WAPs) Exercise of the Hong Kong Council of Social 

Service. During the exercise, we spoke to Social Welfare Department 

Assistant Director (Family and Child Welfare) Fung Man-chung about the 

lack of open spaces in daycare centres. We also offered our ideas on 

how the Social Welfare Department could formulate plans to address 

this lack. 

On 13 June 2014, representatives from HKFWC and the Alliance of 

Carers of Children met with Chua Hoi-wai, Chairman of the Commission 

on Poverty’s Special Needs Groups Task Force, to discuss progress on 

improving childcare services. 

On 29 August 2014, representatives from HKFWC and the Alliance of 

Carers of Children met with Peter Ng Ka-him, Assistant Director (Youth 

and Corrections), Ip Siu-ming, Chief Social Work Officer (Family and Child 

Welfare, and Grace Chan Shuk-ki, Senior Social Work Officer (Youth), 

all of the Social Welfare Department, and Wan Chi Yeung, Assistant 

Secretary of the Labour and Welfare Department. During the meeting, 

we appealed for the government to increase childcare services.

Symposium on a Blueprint for Childcare Support Policy 
in Hong Kong
On 7 February 2015, we co-organised the symposium on A Blueprint 

Childcare Support Policy in Hong Kong along with Tin Shui Wai 

Community Development Network at the City University of Hong Kong. 

We were honoured to have in attendance Hong Kong Council of Social 

Service Chief Executive Chua Hoi-wai, City University Department of 

Applied Social Sciences Associate Professor Leung Lai-ching, Legislative 

Councillor (functional constituency, Social Welfare) Hon Peter Cheung 

Kwok-che of the Labour Party, Legislative Councillor (Kowloon West) Hon 

Helena Wong Pik-wan of the Democratic Party, Legislative Councillor (New 

Territories West) Hon Leung Yiu-chung of the Neighbourhood Workers 

Service Centre, Kowloon City District Councillor Rosanda Mok Ka-han 

of the Association for Democracy and People's Livelihood, and Social 

Welfare Department Chief Social Officer (Family and Child Welfare) Sarah 

Wong Lai-chun. 

The approximately 30 people attending the event made their views 

heard. They included students and representatives from women’s and 

social welfare groups. 

During the symposium, Prof Leung spoke briefly about childcare services 

and carers allowance in other countries. The councillors also expressed 

their support for the whitepaper and its proposals, and spoke about 

the difficulties they have experienced fighting for increased resources 

with the Social Welfare Department (SWD). Representatives from the 

SWD also indicated that people could go to them for assistance in  

difficult cases. 

Speaking in his capacity as a member of the Committee on Poverty, 

Chua Hoi-wai stated that there are three opportunities to improve 

childcare services at present: the consultancy study being conducted 

by the Social Welfare Department on childcare services, the advisory 

committee on fifteen years of free education (of the existing 12 years), 

and increasing focus on female workers in population policy.
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Action for International  
Women’s Day:  
Looking Forward to a Quick 
Implementation of Carers 
Allowance
On 8 March 2015, International Women’s Day, we organised more 

than 100 women and carers for our day of action. We rallied in Tamar 

Park near the government headquarters to show the hard work and 

contributions of carers and express our hope that the government would 

set out a carers subsidy soon. The action was supported with funding 

from the Equal Opportunity Commission. 

During the rally, volunteers from the Women's Helpline and members 

of the Hearts Talk Drama Group put on skits that showcased the many 

experiences and difficulties carers face each day. Many participants 

responded strongly to the true stories from carers' lives shared, 

and expressed their wish that a policy to support carers would be 

implemented at an early date. 

Director Si-si Liu Pui-shan said that women are always stereotyped as 

carers. They care for the young, the old, the sick, and the weak at home. 

The hard work they expend are their contributions to society, she said, 

yet not only can they not find social support – forced to abandon their 

jobs, they become trapped in poverty. 

The government, she said, must meet the needs of women head-

on. They need to establish a carers subsidy in response to all the hard 

work carers give and affirm them. At the same time, she said, they 

should increase related support services and facilities to alleviate the 

monumental burdens and pressure women bear. 

We also sent invitations to all political parties and Democratic Party's 

Hon Emily Lau Wai-hing and Hon Helena Wong Pik-wan attended and 

spoke at the assembly.  They shared their view on carers subsidies and 

developing increased government services and facilities for carers and 

families. They called for carers at home to be given subsidies, and called 

for gender equality and the equitable sharing of care-giving work to be 

promoted further.

At the end of the rally, participants wrote their desires for carers subsidies 

on wishing placards, and hung them at the gate outside the government 

headquarters. We also submitted a petition calling on the government 

to implement policies to support carers and establish a living allowance 

for carers as soon as possible, to affirm the value of carers and their 

contributions to society.

Hong Kong Women’s Coalition on  
Equal Opportunities
We are a member of the Hong Kong Women’s Coalition on Equal 

Opportunities (Women’s Coalition) and have played an active role in the 

Coalition’s work.

On 27 November 2015, we, along with the Women’s Coalition, met with 

representatives from the Women's Commission: Chairperson Stella Lau 

Kun Lai-kuen, Yue Mui-ying, Teresa Au Pui-yi, Wong Pui-yee, and Wong 

Shu-ming. We conveyed how women are faced with a limited quota of 

full-day spaces in kindergartens, and that this lack of childcare options 

makes it difficult for them to take up employment. We also called of 

them to promote that the government establish a subsidy for carers in 

recognition of their many contributions to society.

During the Occupy Central movement in late 2014, the Women's Coalition 

issued an immediate statement when we saw that there were physical 

and verbal assaults against female demonstrators by those holding 

different viewpoints. We criticised those who sexually assaulted women 

whilst they were expressing their right to participate in civic actions. We 

also called on the police to thoroughly investigate the incidents, calling 

on them to be rigorous and impartial in their investigations.
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Continuing Education

Usually I don’t get much access to legal know-how, and at times I don’t know how to reckon 
problems I encounter. The regular legal courses come with really high tuition fees, and I don't 
really know how to sign up for them. Luckily I had the opportunity to participate in HKFWC’s 
Legal Literacy for Women, which gave me the chance to learn about marriage law, so no more 
will I have just a smattering of knowledge of the law. 

 

Wong Wun-wai
Adult Education Course Participant

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Adult Education Scheme  
for Women
Introduction
In the past, women have had less access to opportunities for receiving 

education due to traditional gender stereotypes. Moreover, the 

responsibility to care for the family often fell on the women, further 

affecting their ability to continue their formal education. The Continuing 

Adult Education Scheme not only builds the self-confidence and skills for 

these women, but also raises their standard of living through subsequent 

employment, and broadens their social circles and overall view of self. 

The HKFWC has offered a wide range of adult education courses since 

1998 thanks to funding from the Labour and Welfare Bureau of Hong 

Kong. These courses cater to the learning needs of many groups of 

women, encouraging them to continue to learn, raise their personal 

capacity, and strengthen their self-confidence.

Focus Points and Results for 2014-15
We had a total of 228 women registered for the 11 courses offered at the 

Jockey Club Lai Kok Centre and Jockey Club Tai Wo Centre. We recorded 

964 attendances across the courses in total.

Jockey Club Lai Kok Centre Courses:
 Assertiveness Training Course for Women
 Basic English Course for Women (Elementary level)
 Basic English Course for Women (Intermediate level)
 Basic English Course for Women (High level)
 Legal Literacy for Women
 Basic English Literacy Course for Women

Jockey Club Tai Wo Centre Courses:
 Basic Computer Course
 Effective Communication and Conflict Management Skills
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Fundraising Activities



Striding Forward Walkathon 2014
On 12 October 2014, we held our annual Striding Forward Walkathon 

along the banks of the Shing Mun River in Sha Tin. More than 150 women 

and supporters joined in the walkathon to support further developing the 

“Cherish Food”: Food Sharing Project services and refurbishing the Jockey 

Club Lai Kok Centre. 

We set out four booths along the route to increase public awareness of 

our services. They were themed around our sustainable development 

programme, the Free Legal Advice Clinic, Cherish Food, and the carers 

support programmes. The finish line was especially lively – we set up a 

gong at the finish line, so everyone could ring it as they completed the 

course. By the end of the event, we had raised HK$173,515.30. 

Fundraising Screening of  
My Voice, My Life
On 13 March 2015, we held a charity screening of the film My Voice, 

My Life at the Kowloon Tong AMC Theatre. More than 340 guests and 

volunteers attended, and we raised a total of HK$113,390 to support the 

expansion of our services. 

Before the screening, we thanked the Lee Hysan Foundation for loaning 

us the field. Then a peer counsellor volunteer who had been with the 

Free Legal Advice Clinic for many years shared with attendees how the 

HKFWC has helped the women who seek our services to rebuild and 

bring changes to their lives.
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Volunteer Development



Volunteer Recognition Ceremony
We have walked shoulder to shoulder with our enthusiastic volunteers 

since we were founded in 1981. We currently have 20 groups – totalling 

more than 540 volunteers – who help provide different services at our 

two centres. This year, we also recognised 28 volunteers with Long 

Service Awards for their 5, 10, 15, and 20 years of service.

To thank and give praise to all of our volunteers for their continuous 

support and contribution, we held our annual Volunteer Recognition 

Ceremony at the Hoi Ping Chamber of Commerce Secondary School on 

30 May 2015. Around 200 volunteers and members of their family joined 

us for this year’s ceremony.

We handed out awards recognising volunteers’ efforts and long service, 

and this year, we were also delighted with more performances. Seven 

students from our After-school Care programme brought a warm 

atmosphere to the ceremony by serenading us with “It’s a Small World” 

and playing a recorder rendition of “Ode to Joy”. HKFWC staff also sang 

our thanks to all of our volunteers in folk songs, praising our many 

volunteers for all that they have contributed to the HKFWC over the years. 

Finally, everyone joined in a sing-along of Wakin Chaund long service, 

and this year, we were also delighted with more performances. Seven 

students from our After-school Care program

 

Long Service Award
Certificate of Appreciation for Participation: 
Hong Kong Homemakers’ Alliance, Childcare Concern Group,  

the Women’s Health Living Workers Co-operative Society, Limited,  

and the Women’s Green Life Workers Co-operative Society, Limited.

Honorary Service Awads:
Jockey Club Lai Kok Centre: 

IT Ambassadors, Hearts Talk Drama Group, Administrative Volunteers, 

Peer Counsellors, Helpline Counsellors, Food of Love Volunteers,  

Loving Barbers Team, Volunteers Lawyers of the Free Legal Advice Clinic, 

After-school care Volunteers, Mending "Po" Volunteers.

Jockey Club Tai Wo Centre:

IT Ambassadors, Big Sisters of Retraining Courses,  

Administrative Volunteers, Community Mamas,  

Women's Physical and Mental Health Ambassadors,  

Community childcare Team, Caregivers Peer Group Volunteers, 

Caregivers Team Chancellors, Volunteer Tutors,  

Leisure Group Volunteer Tutors.

Long Service Award
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HKFWC in the Media Press Releases & 
Statements
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Income & Expenditure

Total Income

Total Expenditure

10,002,830 89.7%

621,086 5.6%

337,858 3.0%

170,241 1.5%

23,790 0.2%

11,155,805 100%

9,274,232 88.4%

1 ,093,698 10.4%

79,818 0.8%

44,930 0.4%

10,492,678 100.0%



Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of HONG KONG FEDERATION OF WOMEN'S CENTRES 
(Registered in Hong Kong under the Societies Ordinance in 1992)

We have audited the financial statements of HONG KONG FEDERATION OF WOMEN’S CENTRES (hereinafter called “the Federation”) set out on pages 2 to 15, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in reserves and statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Executive Committee’s responsibility for the financial statements
The Executive Committee is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting 
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and for such internal control as the Executive Committee determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the 
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we 
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Executive Committee, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Federation as at 31 March 2015 and of its financial performance and cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

 LKY China
 Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
Hong Kong,

Auditor's Report
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   2015 2014
  Note HK$ HK$
Income
 Funding income and subsidies 5  10,002,830 7,463,196
 General donation   331,386 189,958
 Walkathon donation    176,310 -
 Film Gala 2015   113,390 -
 Programme income   337,858 317,325
 Membership subscriptions   23,790 25,780
 Sundries   155,910 124,253
 Bank interest income   14,331 14,094
 The HK Jockey Club Charities Trust    - 784,431
    11,155,805 8,919,037

Expenditure
 Auditor’s remuneration   10,000 10,000
 Advertising   99,194 59,626
 Bank charges   4,280 4,206
 Depreciation   57,173 30,181
 Instructor fees   1,263,986 716,820
 Insurance   42,815 40,973
 Legal and professional fee   5, 231 2,523
 Newspaper and magazines   4,593 5,976
 Postage   25,684 24,807
 Project expenses   44,930 784,431
 Printing and stationery   310,172 164,004
 Programme expense   1,270,871 816,345
 Rent paid for premises under operating leases   698,791 394,800
 Rates   55,320 33,300
 Repairs and maintenance   47,386 45,630
 Retrainee’s activities   200 813
 Staff costs
 -  Salaries   5,872,504 4,900,174
 -  Provision for unused annual leave   101,335 (12,916)
 -  Provision for long service payment   (8,453) 74,649
 -  Staff medical   45,569 53,219
 -  Staff training   10,936 14,431
 -  Mandatory provident fund   302,921 252,657
    6,324,812 5,282,214
 Sundry expenses   37,201 29,717
 Travelling   7,450 4,825
 Utilities expenses   182,589 152,578
    10,492,678 8,603,769
    
Surplus for the year  6 663,127 315,268

Other comprehensive items    
 - Utilised and released to Designated Funds   (122,353) 21,060
    
Total comprehensive surplus for the year   540,774 336,328
 

Income Statement
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 March 2015

   2015 2014
  Note HK$ HK$
Non-current assets
 Equipment  8 170,513 70,983

Current assets
 Accounts receivable  9 598,023 1,365,866
 Cash and cash equivalents  10 6,559,344 4,712,114

    7,157,367 6,077,980
Current liabilities
 Accounts payable  11 1,224,577 481,618
 Deferred income  12 894,219 999,035

    2,118,796 1,480,653

Net current assets   5,038,571 4,597,327

Net assets   5,209,084 4,668,310

Represented by: 

Agency Reserves
 Designated Funds  13 1,814,587 1,412,057
 General Fund   3,394,497 3,256,253

    5,209,084 4,668,310

The financial statements and notes set out on pages 2 to 15 were approved and 
authorized for issue by the Executive Committee on                                   
and signed on its behalf by:

 Honorary Treasurer Chairperson
 



Statement of Changes in Reserves
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2015

Balance  
as at  

1.4.2013

Surplus  
for  

the year

Utilised  
and 

released to 
Designated 

Funds

Transfer 
between 
Funds Sub-total

Balance  
as at  

1.4.2014

Surplus  
for  

the year

Utilised  
and 

released to 
Designated 

Funds

Transfer 
between 
Funds Sub-total

Balance  
as at 

31.3.2015

Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

Designated Funds

(a) Lai Kok Centre

 Lai Kok Renovation Fund 13(a)  –  –  –  –  – –  – – 200,000 200,000  200,000

 After School Care Fund 13(b)  –  –  –  –  – –  – (14,112) 163,000 148,888 148,888

 Other Specific Fund 13(c) 223,477  –  –  –  – 223,477  – – – – 223,477

 Staff Emergency Reserve Fund 13(d) 418,129  –  – (227,714) (227,714) 190,415  –  – 131,826 131,826 322,241

 Women's Relief and Support Fund 13(e) 38,890 – (2,000)  – (2,000) 36,890  – (2,000)  – (2,000) 34,890

 Maintenance and Development Fund 13(f) 428,500  –  –  –  – 428,500  –  –  –  – 428,500

 Food Share Donation Fund 13(g)  –  – 24,310  – 24,310  24,310  –  – 30,000 30,000 54,310

(b) Tai Wo Centre

 Film Gala 95 for Furniture and 
 and Equipment 13(h) 101,399  –  – –  – 101,399  –  (101,456) 57  (101,399)  –

 Film Gala of "The Day Tripper" 13(i) 66,679  –  –  – – 66,679  –  (4,785)  – (4,785) 61,894

 Fook Wo House 13(j) 109,500 – (1,250) – (1,250) 108,250  –  –  –  – 108,250

 Other Specific Fund 13(c) 232,137 – –  – – 232,137  – –  –  – 232,137

Sub-total 1,618,711  – 21,060 (227,714) (206,654) 1,412,057  – (122,353) 524,883 402,530 1,814,587

General Fund 2,713,271 315,268 – 227,714 542,982 3,256,253 663,127  – (524,883) 138,244 3,394,497

Total 4,331,982 315,268 21,060  – 336,328 4,668,310 663,127 (122,353)  – 540,774 5,209,084

   2015 2014
   HK$ HK$
Cash flows from investing activities   

Bank interest received   14,380 14,094 
Purchase of furniture and equipment   (156,703) (8,227) 
  

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities   (142,323) 5,867
   
   
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,847,230 (328,115)
Cash and cash equivalents   

As at 1 April   4,712,114 5,040,229  
  
As at 31 March   6,559,344 4,712,114

   2015 2014
   HK$ HK$
Cash flows from operating activities   
Total comprehensive surplus for the year   540,774 336,328
Adjustments for   

Bank interest income   (14,380) (14,094)
Depreciation   57,173 30,181

   
Operating cash flow before working capital changes    583,567 352,415

Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable   767,843 (247,981)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable   742,959 (273,148)
Decrease in deferred income   (104,816) (165,268) 
  

Net cash used in operating activities   1,989,553 (333,982)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

1. General information
The Federation domiciled and set up under the Societies Ordinance in 1992 and is governed 
by a constitution approved in September 1992. In the event of the Federation being dissolved 
every voting member of the Federation undertakes to share the debts and liabilities of the 
Federation equally with the amount not exceeding HK$50 per member, and no part of the 
assets or surplus of the Federation shall be paid or distributed to these voting members. The 
number of voting members of the Federation at 31 March 2015 is 24 (2014: 24).
The address of the registered office and principal place of operations of the Federation are 
305-309, 3/F, Lai Lan House, Lai Kok Estate, Cheung Sha Wan, HK. The principal activities 
of the Federation are provision of supportive services for women in Hong Kong in the areas of 
health, retraining and education. The Federation has three service centres in Lai Kok Estate 
(“Lai Kok Centre”), Tai Wo Estate (“Tai Wo Centre”) and Flora Plaza in Fanling (“WISE”). The 
functional currency of the Federation is Hong Kong dollars, and thus its financial statements 
are presented in Hong Kong dollars.

2. Adoption of revised Hong Kong Reporting Standards
The Federation’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable 
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which includes all applicable individual 
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and 
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA), 
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, and the requirements of the Hong 
Kong Companies Ordinance. A summary of significant accounting policies is set out in note 3.

3. Summary of significant accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and in accordance 
with HKFRS issued by HKICPA, and including applicable disclosures required by the Hong 
Kong Companies Ordinance.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement 
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements, are disclosed in the respective notes, if appropriate.
The followings are the specific accounting policies that are necessary for a proper 
understanding of the financial statements,

a.	 Equipment
Equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price 
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to the working condition and 
location for its intended use.
Subsequent expenditure relating to equipment that has already been recognised is 
added to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic 
benefits, in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing 
asset, will flow to the enterprise. If not, the expenditure is treated as an expense in the 
period in which it is incurred.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their 
estimated useful lives on a straight line basis.

b.	 Financial	instruments	
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial 
position when the Federation becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.
(i) Accounts receivable
 Accounts receivable are initially measured at fair value and, after initial 

recognition, at amortised cost less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts, 
if any.

 At the end of each reporting period, the Federation assesses whether there is 
any objective evidence that a receivable or group of receivables is impaired. 
Impairment losses on accounts receivables are recognised in profit or loss when 
there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred and are 
measured as the difference between the receivable’s carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that 
have not been incurred) discounted at its original effective interest rate, i.e. the 
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash comprises cash on hand and at bank and demand deposits with bank. 

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value.

(iii) Accounts payable
 Accounts payable are initially measured at fair value and, after initial recognition, 

at amortised cost, except for short-tem payables with no stated interest rate and 
the effect of discounting being immaterial that are measured at their original 
invoice amount.

c.	 Impairment	of	assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation, which are 
at least tested annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be 
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation and are reviewed for impairment 
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may 
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the 
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is 
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes 
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are 
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

d.	 Provisions	and	contingent	liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when Federation 
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions 
are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or 
the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent 
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible 
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities 
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

e.	 Revenue	recognition
(i) Government subvention and general donations
 Government subvention and general donations are recognized on receivable 

basis.
(ii) Programme income
 Programme income is recognised when the programme are held.
(iii) Bank interest received
 Bank interest received is recognized on a time proportion basis on the amount of 

outstanding deposits at the applicable interest rates.

f.	 Employee	benefits
(i) Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recongised 

when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability 
for annual leave and long service leave as a result of services rendered by 
employees up to the end of reporting period. Employee entitlement to sick leave 
and maternity or paternity leave are not recognised until time of leave.

(ii) Retirement benefit costs
 The Federation’s contributions to retirement scheme are expensed as incurred.

g.	 Foreign	currencies
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).  
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at the 
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at 
the end of reporting period are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the end of 
reporting period. Exchange differences arising in these cases are dealt with in the 
statement of comprehensive income.



3. Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
h.	 Operating	leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remain 
with the leasing company are accounted for as operating leases.
Rental payment under operating leases is recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income on a straight line basis over the relevant lease term.

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgement
The Federation’s management makes assumptions, estimates and judgements in the 
process of applying the Federation’s accounting policies that affect the assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses in the financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. 
The assumptions, estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and 
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. While the 
management reviews their judgements, estimates and assumptions continuously, the 
actual results will seldom equal to the estimates.

a.	 Key	assumption	and	other	key	sources	of	estimation	uncertainty
Certain key assumptions and risk factors in respect of the financial risk management 
are set out in note 16. In the opinion of Executive Committee, there is no other key 
sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the financial year.

b.	 Critical	judgements	in	applying	the	company's	accounting	policies
In the opinion of Executive Committee, there is no critical judgements in applying the 
Federation’s accounting policies.

5. Funding income and subsidies 
   2015 2014

   HK$ HK$
Deferred income utilised and released during the year 
(Note 12)

- Give2Asia   - 130,316
- Food Share Fund   322,294 282,390
- Community Investment and Inclusion Fund  - -
- Sustainable Development Fund 558 (Note 9) - -
- Oxfam Hong Kong (Note 9)   459,883 449,504
- Women Empowerment Fund   40 30
   782,217 862,240

Government subvention   
- Employees Retraining Board (Note 9)   4,842,564 3,016,766
- The Community Investment and Inclusion Fund (Note 9) 585,347 475,888
- Sustainable Development Fund 558 (Note 9) 691,702 181,085
- Adult Education (Note 11)   67,061 67,310
- Rent and rates subsidies from Social Welfare Department 437,520 428,100

The Community Chest of Hong Kong   
- allocation donations   2,418,200 2,347,700

Yin Shin Leung Charitable Foundation   33,500 -
Contributions for programme   144,719 84,107

   10,002,830 7,463,196

6. Surplus before tax
The surplus before tax is arrived at after charging the following items, 

   2015 2014
   HK$ HK$

Executive Committee's Remuneration   
- as Executive Committee    - -
- for management   - -
   - -

Staff costs   
- Salaries and allowance    5,872,504 4,900,174
- instructor fees    1,263,986 716,820
- staff medical   45,569 53,219
- staff training   10,936 14,431
- mandatory provident fund   302,921 252,657
- (reversal)/provision for unused annual leave  101,335 (12,916)
- reversal for long service payment   (8,453) 74,649
   7,588,798 5,999,034

Auditor's remuneration   10,000 10,000
Depreciation   57,173 30,181
Hire of office premises under operating leases   698,791 382,200
Programme expenses   1,270,871 816,345
Project expense   44,930 784,431

7. Income tax 
The Federation is exemption from Hong Kong profits tax by reason of its charitable status 
under Section 88 of Inland Revenue Ordinance.

8. Equipment 
 Computer Office 
 equipment equipment Total 
 HK$ HK$ HK$
Cost

As at 1.4.2013 98,732 119,782 218,514
Addition during the year 1,547 6,680 8,227
As at 1.4.2014 100,279 126,462 226,741
Addition during the year 108,816 47,887 156,703
As at 31.3.2015 209,095 174,349 383,444

    
Accumulated depreciation

As at 1.4.2013 78,159 47,418 125,577
Charge for the year 10,619 19,562 30,181
As at 1.4.2014 88,778 66,980 155,758
Charge for the year 31,629 25,544 57,173
As at 31.3.2015 120,407 92,524 212,931

Carrying amount	 	 	
As at 31.3.2015 88,688 81,825 170,513
As at 31.3.2014 11,501 59,482 70,983

The principal annual rates used for depreciation are as follows:
Computer   33.3%
Office equipment    20% 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015
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9. Accounts receivables 
  2015 2014
  HK$ HK$
Utility deposit   46,900 39,000
Other receivables and prepayments   244,436 917,717
Amount due from Employee Retaining Board (note (i)) 15,130 53,267
Amount due from the Community Investment and   270,320 245,294

 Inclusion Fund (note (ii)) 
Amount due from Sustainable Development    21,237 81,084

Fund Project (note (iii))
Amount due from Oxfam HK (note (iv))   - 29,504
   598,023 1,365,866
Note: 
(i) Amount due from Employee Retraining Board

As at 1 April   53,267 70,889
Funds received   (4,880,701) (3,034,388)
Amount utilised and released to the    4,842,564 3,016,766

Income Statement (Note 5) 
As at 31 March   15,130 53,267

(ii) Amount due from/(to) Community Investment and Inclusion Fund
As at 1 April   245,294 203,813
Program income   (560,321) (434,407)
Amount utilised and released to the   585,347 475,888

Income Statement (Note 5) 
As at 31 March   270,320 245,294

(iii) Amount due from/(to) Sustainable Development Fund Project (SDF 321)
As at 1 April, balance as at 31 March 2014   - 232,132
Fund received   - (232,132)
As at 31 March   - -
Amount due from/(to) Sustainable Development  Fund Project (SDF 558)
As at 1 April   81,084 -
Fund received   (751,549) (100,001)
Utilized and released to the Income Statement (Note 5) 691,702 181,085
As at 31 March   21,237 81,084

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2015

(iv) Amount due from/(to) Oxfam HK
As at 1 April   29,504 -
Fund received   (489,387) (420,000)
Utilized and released to the Income Statement (Note 5) 459,883 449,504
As at 31 March   - 29,504

10. Cash and cash equivalents
  2015 2014
  HK$ HK$
Fixed deposits  3,244,126 3,229,878
Cash at bank and on hand  3,315,218 1,482,236

   6,559,344 4,712,114

11. Accounts payable
  2015 2014
  HK$ HK$
Accrued charges  1,156,554 422,655
Received in advance for Adult Education (note below)  68,023 58,963
  1,224,577 481,618
Note: 
Received in advance for Adult Education
As at 1 April  58,963 61,872
Subvention received  76,121 64,401
Amount utilised and released to the Income Statement (Note 5) (67,061) (67,310)
As at 31 March  68,023 58,963

12. Deferred income
As at 

1.4.2013
Donation  
Received

Utilised and 
released to 

Income  
Statement

As at 
31.3.2014

Donation  
Received

Utilised and 
released to 

Income  
Statement

As at 
31.3.2015

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

(a) Lai Kok Centre

 Oxfam HK 2012 (Note a)  –  – –  –  –  –  – 

 Food Share Fund (Note b) 229,437  245,459 (282,390) 192,506 216,227  (322,294) 86,439

 Women Empowerment Fund (Note c) 2,563 2,009 (30) 4,542 1,291 (40) 5,793

 After School Care Services - Walkathon donation 2013/2014 (Note d) 73,790 – – 73,790 – – 73,790

 Sub-Total 305,790 247,468 (282,420) 270,838 217,518 (322,334) 166,022

(b) Tai Wo Centre

 Women Empowerment Fund (Note c) 15,707 – – 15,707 – – 15,707

 Give2Asia (Note e) 130,316 – (130,316) – – – –

 Renovation of new centre (Note f)

 - Walkathon donation 189,205 – – 189,205 – – 189,205

 - Others donation 518,185 – – 518,185 – – 518,185

 - Donation for Patchwork Sale 5,100 – – 5,100 – – 5,100

 Sub-Total 858,513 – (130,316) 728,197 – – 728,197

Total 1,164,303 247,468 (412,736) 999,035 217,518 (322,334) 894,219
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16. Financial instruments
The Federation has classified its financial assets in the following categories:
   2015 2014
   HK$ HK$
Accounts receivable (note 9)   598,023 1,365,866
Cash and cash equivalents (note 10)   6,559,344 4,712,114
   7,157,367 6,077,980

The Federation has classified its financial liabilities in the following categories:
   2015 2014
   HK$ HK$
Accounts payables (note 11)   1,224,577 481,618
Deferred income (note 12)   894,219 999,035
   2,118,796 1,480,653

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different from their fair 
values as at 31 March 2015.
The Federation is exposed to credit risk and liquidity risk arising in the normal course of its 
operations and financial instruments. The Federation’s risk management objectives, policies 
and processes mainly focus on minimizing the potential adverse effects of these risks on its 
financial performance and position by closely monitoring the individual exposure.

a.	 Credit	risk
Credit risk is managed on an organisational basis. Credit risk arises mainly from cash 
at banks.
The Federation’s bank balances are deposited in reputable bank. As such, no 
significant credit risk is anticipated. The Federation has policies in place for the control 
and monitoring of the relevant concentration of credit risk.
The Federation’s main source of income is the donations from the general public. It 
has no other significant financial assets which lead to any credit risk to the Federation. 
Accordingly, the Executive Committee are of the opinion that the relevant credit risk of 
the Federation is low without any significant concentration.
The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each 
financial assets in the statement of financial position.  

b.	 Liquidity	risk
Prudent liquidity risk management included maintaining sufficient cash and bank 
balances so as to enable the Federation to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due 
and to continue operating for the foreseeable future. The Executive Committee are of 
the opinion that the Federation does not have any significant liquidity risk.

17. Possible impact of  amendments,  new standards and 
 interpretations issued but not yet effective for the year ended 
 31 March 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a few 
amendments and new standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 March 
2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
The Federation is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these 
amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that 
the adopted of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Federation’s results of 
operations and financial position.

12. Deferred income (cont'd)
The detailed natures of deferred income are as follows,
(a) It represents funds received for the advocacy project on proposing a child care 

support scheme for low-income families.
(b) It represents funds received for the project named that aims to 

reduce food wastage in Hong Kong.
(c) It represents donations received to support the related expenses for women to 

attend conferences and workshops.
(d) It represents donations received for the project named “After School Care Services” 

to sustain our after school care services.
(e) It represents donations received to support a women’s empowerment program that 

delivers training for marginalized women about establishing a social enterprise.
(f) It represents donations received for establishment of the new Tai Wo Centre, and 

expansion of services.

13. Designated Funds
The movement of designated fund during the year are disclosed in statement of changes in 
reserves on page 4 and the nature of the Funds are as follows.
(a) It represents funds raised for renovation of Lai Kok Centre.
(b) It represents donations received from donors for supporting our After School Care 

service.
(c) They represent donations received from various corporations and trust funds for 

programs in Lai Kok and Tai Wo Centres specified by the donors.
(d) Staff Emergency Reserve Fund represents funds designated for the purpose of 

supporting salary deficits in future time.
(e) Women’s Relief and Support Fund represents funds designated for the purpose of 

offering immediate and timely help to women who are in need of financial assistance 
for Lai Kok Centre.

(f) It represents funds raised for emergency maintenance of, equipment repair or 
replacement at, and IT development of the Lai Kok Centre.

(g) Food share Donation Fund received from donors to support the food share program 
that aims to reduce food waste and to alleviate property in Hong Kong.

(h) It represents funds raised for equipping and maintaining Tai Wo Centre.
(i) It represents donations received for subsidizing recurrent expenses of Tai Wo 

Centre.
(j) Tai Wo – Fook Wo House represents funds designated for renovation of Tai Wo 

centre and subsidizing the recurrent expenses of Fook Wo House.

14. Significant operating lease commitment
At the reporting date, the Federation had contracted as tenant for the following future 
minimum lease payments,
   2015 2014
   HK$ HK$
Within one year   724,200 382,200
After one year, but within five years.   70,790 382,200
   794,990 764,400

15. Capital disclosure
The Federation’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Federation’s 
ability to continue as a going concern in order to carry out its principal activities. The 
Federation’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Federation may appeal for donations 
from the general public.
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Yes! I want to be a donor and enjoy the satisfaction of knowing that every cent of my gift is helping 

 Please send the cheque or deposit slip with this donation form to HKFWC. Tax-deductible receipt will be issued for donation of HK$100 or above. Thank you.

 The above information will be used for mailing receipts and sending out information only, and will be kept confidential.

 Thank You for Your Support!
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